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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Polixel Security Systems Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of Polixel Security
Systems Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2023,
the statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the statement of changes in
equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
inforrnation.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and
loss (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended
on that date.

Besis for Cpinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companias Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor's Regponsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements section of
our report. We are indepericent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountanis of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements under the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these raquirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
ie sufiicient and appropriaie (o provide a basis for our opinion.

wudit Matters

Key cudit matters are those imatters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the stendalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
1, and we do noet provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters
bad below to be the Key audit matters to be communicated in our report:

&t key Audit Matter Auditor's Response

e i

1 Carrying Value of inventicries Our procedure included, but were not
[ limited to the following:

The determination of value of inventory and
ron/slow moving inventory provision involves a | We obtained detailed understanding of the
significant degres of management judgment. Company's process on non/slow moving
This is congsidered as Key Audit Matter as the inventory provisioning.

key judgements involved in terms of
identification of non/siow moving and the Our audit approach consisted testing of the
Subsequent raalisability. dasign and operating effectiveness of the
management review controls and substantive
testing as follows:
Feealisable amount estimated by menagement

is subject to various Key assumptions such — Evaluated the technical competence of the
| @3 the length of dine required to sell personnel determining the usability of the
inventories, the price level at which inventory inventory and sales recoverability.

| will be sold in fuiure and whether inventories
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vill need to be valuzd below their cost of - Evaluated whether the duration of product
acquisition. life cycle and the expected sales is based on
past trends.

— Further tested the computation to assess the
accuracy.

Our procedure included, but were not
fimited to the following:

Trade receh

Managemeani recognized allowances for

irpairmant los year end on trade Assessed the recoverability of trade
receivables basced on specific known facts or receivables by reference to their historical bad
circumstances on customers’ abilities to debt expense, ageing profiles of the counter
pay. The details of trade receivables and parties and historical repayment trends; and

expactad cradit loss cllowances have been
| disclosed in relevant note to the financial Assessed subsequent collections from
statements, customers against the amounts outstanding as

at the end of the reporting period.
Trie determination ui‘ recoverability of the trade
raceivables invoives gignificant management
judgment and inherent subjectivity ¢iven the
uncertainty r-‘*\,’uomn mo ability m the trade
raceivables to se their debts. Therefore,

| datermination of exvected cradit loss
silowance wus identified as a key audit matter.

Thc (’“‘(=1'rsg:z.1.\,/‘$ Boara of Dy

cothan 1he Standzlone Ind AS Financial Siatements and Auditor’'s Report

wrs is responsible for the preparation of other information. The other
F\c nort including Annexurob to Board's Report but does not include
’ i : s report thereon. The other information
axpecied to be made uv:Il_.olu to us after the date of this auditor's

ind AS Financial Statements does not cover the other information and

we il il n(»t express any onn of sssuranca conclusion thereon.

with the Siendalons ind A T

govemnance and take nocos

pre;mr:’mm of thv Standalai

arsciion with our audit ¢ | u. 2 Standaione Ind AS Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read
war inormation and, i g e0, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
laternents or our knowledge obtained during the course of our

b materiaily misstated.

or otharwise appears ic

wo road the other information cormprising the above docurnents, if we conclude that there is a
misstatement thereln, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with
ary actions as per applicable laws and regulations.

Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
rasponsible for the maliers stated in Section 134(5) of the
sact (o the preparation of these Standalone Ind AS Financial
ay of the financial nosition, financial performance, total
; - and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
cented in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified
: This responsibility elso includes maintenance of adequate accounting

srovisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and
ude and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
ments L‘nd estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,

xhut give 4 ts
n” mcsm Git

’no /\\, Fina ncui tatements tnat-g{ve a true and fa!r view and are free
aterial misstaterment, whether due to fraud or error.



In prenaring the Standzlong Ind AS Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability o oonf.im.;e as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the comg concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Comparny or to caz wiions, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The toard of Directors ars asizo responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

the Audit of the Standsalone Ind AS Financial Statements
sonable assurance about whether the Standalone Ind AS Financial

Audilor’s Fesponsipll

Cur objeciives are to ontain re
St; =rnants s a whicle are fres rom raterial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue

our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
sis, Migstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material

egpate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic

deoisums of users ta,«sn on the basis of these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements.

n auditor's report that includ
: g.'uer‘mtﬁe l'h‘]t an

>f an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

skeplicisin throughout the audit. We also:

255 e risks of material misstaternent of the Standalone Ind AS Financial

3 ity and as
ternents, whether cue Lu raud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit e nee that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The r,ul of not detacting ¢ terial risstaternent resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
nomerior, as fraud inay invelve coliusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the

CVETTILeE Dl internel control.
¢ G m an understs :m G | intermnal COHtiOl 1 vant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
ppu:pr 1 cireumnstances, Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
2 for exvies MU opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
‘,fste:r;s in plece and the operaling effectiveness of such controls,
@ s of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
closures made by management.

onctlce i@ aporopristeness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting

«
"\,

on i
) ‘ence obiained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
disclosures in the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements or, if such

HIes are inad , to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
120 up to the date of vur auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
ompany to cease o continue as e going concern,

o

s Cvaluate the cverall oresentation, struciure and content of the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Slatements, including ithe aisclosures, and whether the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
raoresent the undarlying transactions end events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Matariclity 5 the magnituce of migstalements in the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements that,
irndividually or in aggraeg makes 1t probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowlzdgeeble user of the Stendalone Ind AS Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider
quaniitative materiality and cuszlitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
eval' ng the results of our v ok and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the

Standaions Ind AS Financial Statements.

'

We cammunicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
:mc' iming of ihc : 1 and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we Fudring oy audit

Wea 2 ovide those i srieznce with a statement that we have complied with relevant

athicnl requirements re: dence, and to commurieate with them all relationships and other

Iate
pae
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Report on Other Legsi and Hegulatory Requirements

A, As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Covernment of India in terms of sub-saction (11) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we
give in the "Annexure-A” @ statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

quired by Section 145(3) of the Act, we report that:
() We have sougiit and obtained ell the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belic 2 niecessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinicn, propsr books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
for zs it eppears from cur examination of those books.

ment of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the
|d th »Utument of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in

o) Tha Balance Sheal, St
3 ont of Cash ;

caic Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Indian
cified under Saction 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued
nd ~‘|

ittei representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2023
rd of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March,
5 a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

&non rdcord b/ sh,
023 from being apooir

0 \/‘v"ii'ri a“e3pcc’r to ks T g/ of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the

aness of such controls, refer to our separate reportin “Annexure

ttars to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
57016) of the Act, as amandead, in our opinion and to the best of our
ECUe io the explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the
crovisiens of saction 197 of the Act, in resnect of remuneration to its directors.

(i) Wiih respect to the otiier maiters (o be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
ifermation and according (o the explanations given to us:

|; Ine Cornpany ias dizclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone Ind AL Finzncial Staiements.

i) The Cormpany has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative

coniracts.

i) Therewere ¢ o, rcunis which ware raquired to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Frotection Fund by the Company.

) (2) The iz i has represenied that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are meteri st individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or
irvested (either from borrowad funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by thae Cornpany ¢ of i any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”),
with the undaig 1w, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whethar, directiy or indirectly l2nd or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on banalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
secdrity or the like on bahalfl of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

it has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
zl either individually or in the aggregate)-have been received by the

(by The Managoms
funds (which =




PL:C(
Date

Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the
undarstanding, whsiher recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or mou sotly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever py or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or ine like on behelf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstanceas, niothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
epresentations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above,
contain any material misstatemeant.

v. The Cormparny has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has not proposed

any dividend for the yeai

For Oswal Sunil & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 016520N=-_

CA Naresh Kumar Goel'V/ -

Partnes”

Membership No.: 085238 -
UDIN: 23085238BGXXHM 1042
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ANMNEXL “A” TO THE NDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Arnexure raferred to in paragraph A under '‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
szction of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the Members of Polixel Security Systems
Privats Limited on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023,
we report that:

( v iz maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
“roparty, Plant and Equipment.

i)y (a) (/ ) The Cornp
datails and situation or i

(B) The Company is mainlzining proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

“ouinment hiave baen physically verifiad by the management at reasonable
explanations given to us, in our opinion, no material discrepancies

(&) The Freperty, Plant and
intervals. As per informaticn ¢

were noticed on such variication

= any imrnovable properties and hence, no comments are required on

JC‘

(¢} The Company does not he
it l~ deads of immovable propeartia

v

(d) The Company has not luad its Property, Plant and Equinment (inciuding Right of Use assets)
rintangible assets or botn duiing the year.

Cu

(e) As per information and sxplanations given to us, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending
sgainst the company for helding any banami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,
{5 of 1888) and rules made thereunder.

(i) (27 Physical veriiication of inventory was conducted at reasonable intervals by the management and

it o obinion, the 1 procedurs of such verification by the management was appropriate.
No di i cies or’ 10 7 3 in the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed requiring

Of five crore 1t 1

cstiments in, provided guarantees, provided security, granted loans and
secured of unsacured, to companies and other parties, as under —

(EEI') The company has
) g inthe nature of los

as :<" NH no zlc.m,@ outstanding at the balance sheet
g, joint ventures and associates was

g the year was € Mil, and balance outstanding at the balance sheet
5 and guaraniess, etc. to other than subsidiaries, joint ventures and

weording to the inierm
wied by us, inour 2§
GIMBANY. Th@*"ﬁ b
oninicn, no commiant i
during tht Yaar and w

stion and axplanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
onine inw,\ tments made are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of
amount of guarantees provided during the year and/ or of loans given,
juired on t;,\ erms and conditions of the grant of loans and guarantees
sther inase were, prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

ances in the nature of foans given by the Company, the stipulation as
of principal or of payment of interest, was not applicable.

(d) Th "ing ne foan . the following were out of question -
stiptls lon ez to schedul ‘zym ;:r‘t of prmur)al and paymem of interest, the repayments or receipts
i » g,




(&) Thare ware no loans or advances in the nature of loans granted to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnziships or any other partias which had fallen due during the year, that have been renewed or
extended or fresh loans granted to seitle the overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.

(f) According to the informiation and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Cornpany, in our opinion the Company has not granted any loans either repayable on
dermiend or without specitying any terims or period of repaymr,m during the year to its Promoters and
related parties as defined in Clause (76) of Section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).

1

o to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of loans,
eounties given, provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act have been

(iv) i our opinion and accord
investiments, guaranieas, and
complied with.

{v) The Company has not acceptad any deposits from the public and hence the directives issued by the
F”e»vew & Bank of India and the srovisicns of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the
Act and the Companies (Accaniance of Daposit) Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits accepted from

the public are not apolicabis,

;cording to the informztion and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
ped the maintanznca of cost records under section 148 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the
of

procucts of the Compariy.

(vity () The Cornpeny iz generaily reguiar in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and
SE‘.i'\’i’_L:;, ex, provident ]r'ﬂ-’._,s, smployess’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
cusioims, duty of excize, value added iax, cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate
avithorities, There wera no aivears of ouistanding statutory dues as on the last day of the financial year
for # seriod of more than six months frorm the date they became payable.

T

Aecording o tha information and explanation given to us and records examined by us, statutory

dues as refarred to above, which have not been deposited on account of any dispute, are as under:
EBEE T ] Amount to /
At Amount Forum where
ne of |INalure ! Deposited the | . \
, involver gdispute is
the stafute |ldues | {3) .
(<) , pending
relates
The fncome | DI
= Act, | w/z 86 and | 19,00,720/- 3,80,144/- | AY 2016-17 ITAT, New Delhi
interest
y lered or dizsclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the

(viil} Tre Combany nas not surrent
books of account, in the fax ¢ ments undar the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.
Accoraingly, the requircmant 1o report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is rot applicable to the Company.

(ix) (&) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
fzultad in repayrment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

e
SR

ared & witful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

(b) The Compeany is no
(¢) A5 perinformation 2nd explanations given o us, no term loans were raised for any specific purpose.

Hor of the Tinancial statements of the Company, no funds raised on short-
or fong-term purposes by the Company.

W

an everall examing
agis have beai




(e) The Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries,
joint ventures or associzte companies.

(x} (&) The Company nhas not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further
public offer (including debt instruments) and hence, the requiremeant to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the
Oraar iz not applicable o the Company,

onand exolanations give to us and based on our examination of the
ympany has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
lally or optionally convertible) during the year.

(b) According to the informeati
records of the Company, the Co
snares of debenturas (ully, pa

(xi) (&) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination, no
matsiial fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported
durinig the year,

(b} Mo report under sub-section (112) of saction 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors
in Fori ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with

the Cantral Governiment.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there were no whistle blower complaints received by the

>

f

Coempany duiing the year

fe Company is not a nidig Company, as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore,
Be .‘3( ii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

the reguiremant to repoit on ok
Lecoreing to 12’1’3 iz'zfmm: len and explanaiions given by the menagement, transactions with the
with Zections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable
ssed in ihe notes to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, as
sunting standards.

deta Is) h""

cd by the appllo .

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has no
internat audit eystem, the :=rq wizionsg of clause 3(xiv) of the order regarding internal audit system being
not anplicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(xv) According to the informaiion and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
antersd into any non-cash ranszclions with directors or persons connected with directors.

) The provigions of suction 45-14 of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
s to the Comparny. ,"JN’;‘C)FOII‘]Q‘}", the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the Order is not
nle to the Company

"b) ‘i'w i Comuany has aot conducted any MNon-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities

\

elid Cerlilicate of Ragistration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the

/\ ] D
Cf, 1924

{cy The Company is not o Core Investient Company as defined in the regulations made by
Sank of India, Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not
a ¢ to the Company. According to the inforrnation and explanations given to us, there are two
CGE'(’B investment Coim {(CIC) in the Group, viz;, T MN Ventures (P) Litd; 2. Nextwave

Comimunications (F) Lid.




(vvii) Ti’r Company has incuired cash lossas amounting to € 1,34,04,752/- in the financial year ended
31 ¢, 2023, In the mme urutely preceding financial yeer, the amount of cash losses incurred was

g 2,'1 53,20,3-"!{’3/—.

neation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xviil) Thera has been no re
requirement to report on Claus

kno\/\f.\,dq 3 of the doal J of Direc to”‘ 'nd management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any meterial unceriainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of
meeting its fiabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of
I date.

ona year from the belance sne

ot @n assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further

<

Ve, howavaer, state that this is

state ihat our reporting is on the fucts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guzreniee nor any assuranca that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(o0 The Dompany was not naving net worth of rupees fivae hundrad crore or more, or turnover of rupees
ong thousand crore or more of 2 riet profit of rupees five crore or more during the immediately preceding
finsncial year and hence, provisions of Section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the Company during

Accordingly, raporting undear clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

the vao

For Oswal Sunil & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 016520N

CA Naresh Kumar Gogl'
Partner
Membearship No.: 085238
UDIN: 23085238BGXXHM 1042

Flace: Now Delhi
D 251 ppril, 2023
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ANNEXURE 3 7O THE INDEPENDENT AULITGRS’ REPORT
(Referrad to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report of even date)

Reporl on the Internai Financlal Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the

Com: sunies Act, 2013 {‘tha Acl))

31stiarch, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone
ind AS Financial Staternents of the (,om peny for the year ended on that date.

went’s Res for Intsrnal Financial Controls

sard of Direclors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
s Dased on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
izl corsponents of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
ai Reporiing issued by the Instituie of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAT). These responzibilit include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of ite hwmaso, including acherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
pres and detection of Tfrauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
FeCers cmd the timealy oreparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013

copntr

consl ‘c:ring the essent
Financial Controls over Fines

=n opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
‘Guidance Note’) and the Standards on
med 1o L plwa,rmed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
O an UL-u it of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
; ssuad by ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
s and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
rir:" ncizl controls over financial reporting was established and
ated eifectively in &ll material respects.

Financis
l) Ed 1 3

Our aun s waciorming procedures (0 obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls sye[\'m over | mnuol reoorting end their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
i 1 reporiing includad obtaining an understanding of internal financial
:,b;nu tha risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
factiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
udllam judgernent, including the assessment of the risks of
Im ind AS Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error,

idence we have obtained is sufiicient and appropriate to provide a basis for
@ !"i:gr,g =ny’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

ial Con “inancial Reporting
sial comtroi over financizal reporiing is a process designed to provide
ity of financial repoiting and the preparation of Standalone
: ml purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
i compan\"; iterns! financizl control over financial reporting includes those policies and
3 tiizxt (1) pert: m ( e maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, sccurately and fairly
ansaciions and ssitions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
actions are rac susary to permit preparation of Standalone Ind AS Financial
in accordans [ gr;:n-; =lly accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
fes of the com e being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
actors of the d (3) provide reazsonable assurance regardmg prevention or timely
ithorized acquis tlon uze, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a

datons Ind AS Financial Statements.

s ointernal Bn
BUrENCe 1o

Y 2
o

campany; ar

rent Limitations of Internad Financial Controls over Einancial Reporting
of the inherent i s of internal financial Gontrofs:over financial reporting, including the
ity of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to

W




arior or fraud may cccur end not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
conitrols over financial raporting (o future periods are subject to tha risk that the internal financial control
ovar iinancial reporting may become Inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with ihe policizs o procedures may deteriorate.

¥

s, in all rnaterial respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
ctivaly @s on 31« f, 2023, baszd on the internal control over financial reporting criteria

: by the Company considenny ithe essential components of internal control stated in the
ce Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
riered Accountaris of India,

inion, the Company Ns
nciel reporting and ¢

of Cha

For Oswal Sunil & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 016520N "
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CA Naresh Kumar.Goel
Partner-
Membership No.: 085238
UDIN: 23085238BGXAHM1042

Ciew Delhi
y 280 April, 2073




Polixel Security Systems Private Limited

CIN: U93000DL2010PTC199073

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

(All amounts are in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

. As at As at
Particulars hogeiio: March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Non-current Assets
(a) Investments 3 1.00 1.00
(b) Property, Plant and Equipment 4 5.45 6.18
(c) Intangible assets (other than Goodwill) 5 0.34 0.34
(d) Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables - -
(i) Others 6 5.41 3.01
(e) Other Non Current Assets 6a 2.60 2,60
(f) Deferred tax assets (net) 7 - 6.77
14.80 19.90
Current Assets
(a) Inventories 8 93.08 102.46
(b} Financial Assets
(i} Trade Receivables 9 166.24 177.61
(ii) Cash & cash equivalents 10 10.73 37.60
(iify Bank balances other than (ii} above 11 153,33 152.90
(iv} Loans 12 499.27 953.78
(v) Others 13 2.33 4.08
(c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 14 (a) 27.23 29.37
(d) Contract Assets 14 (b} 0.70 1.63
(e) Other current assets 15 46.50 44.34
999.41 1,503.77
Total Assets 1,014.21 1.523.67
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 16 18.09 18.09
(b) Other Equity 16 735.83 875 41
753.92 §93.50
Liabilities
Non-current Liabilities
(a) Provisions 17 25.89 23.61
(b) Other non current liabilities 17(a) - -
25.89 23.61
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 18 100.00 150.00
(it) Trade Payables 19
-total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 61.12 87.83
-total outstanding dues to other than micro and small enterprises 46.00 67.57
(ili) Other financial liabilities 20 19.91 34,74
(b) Other current liabilities 21 2.41 255.02
(c) Provisions 22 4,96 11.39
234.40 606.55
Total Liabilities 260.29 630.17
Total equity and liabilities 1,014.21 1,523.67

As per our report of even date attached
For Oswal Sunil & Company
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No.: 016520N

CA Naresh Kumg
Partner

M.No.: 085238

Place: New Delhi
Date: 26th April, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board
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thendré’Singh Chalid

‘Director

DIN 01709943

i ‘l / ,f
\_,{{ |V

Kamal Kumar Sharma
Director
DIN 00606090




Polixel Security Systems Private Limited
CIN: U93000DL2010PTC199073

Statement of Profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars Note No. | warch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
I.  |INCOME
Revenue from operations 23 71.61 118.78
Other Income 24 74.92 102.19
Total Revenue (1) 146.53 220.97
Il. |JEXPENSE
Purchase of goods for resale (including spares) 13.70 17.61
Change in inventories of finished goods, work-in
progress and stock-in trade (including spares) 25 9.38 27.88
Other Direct cost 26 3.34 40.81
Employee benefits expense 27 167.11 190.51
Finance Cost 28 18.81 36.07
Depreciation, Amortization and Impairment 4,5 0.73 3.23
Other Expenses 29 68.24 126.29
Total Expenses (Il) 281.31 442.40
lll |Profit/ (loss) before exceptional items and income tax (134.78) (221.43)
(1-1D
v Exceptional item (net of tax) -
V  |Profit/ (Loss) before tax (lll - V) (134.78) (221.43)
VI |Tax expense
Current tax - -
Deferred Tax 6.77 0.29
VIl |Profit/(loss) for the period (V - VI) (141.54) (221.72)
VIl |Other Comprehensive Income
A.) ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) remeasurement of defined benefit plans; 1.96 7.25
(i} Tax on above item - -
1.96 7.25
Other comprehensive income for the year after tax
N (139.58)
IX |Total comprehensive income for the year (VII + VIIl) (214.47)
Basic earnings per share 30 {78.26) {122.59)
Diluted earnings per share 30 (78.26) (122.59)

As per our report of even date attached
For Oswal Sunil & Company
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No.: 016520N

QA

CA Naresh Kumar Goel
Partner
M.No.: 085238

Place: New Delhi
Date: 26th April, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board
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Jitén'dFé/.Singh Chaudhary
Director
DIN 01709943

Kamal Kumar Sharma
Director
DIN 00606090




Polixel Security Systems Private Limited

CIN: U93000DL2010PTC199073

Statement of Cash Flow for the period ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Cash flows from operating activities Profit before Tax {134.78) (221.43)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation, Amortization and impairment 0.73 3.23
Interest Expenses 15.91 24.14
Interest Income (80.98)
From Inter Corporate Deposit (53.63)
From Fixed Deposit (8.00)
Profit on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment (0.20) -
Provision for Emloyee Benefits Expenses 4.41 4.85
Excess Provisions Written Back (11.46) (1.71)
Provision for doubtful debts - -
Bad debts Written off 1.56 3.77
Loans and Advances Written off - -
Liabilities/ provisions no longer required written back - -
Operating cash flow before changes in assets and liabilites (185.46) (268.14)
Decrease/(increase) in inventory 9.38 27.88
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables 9.80 482.85
Decrease/(increase) in other financial and non-financial assets 0.52 8.17
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables (48.28) (157.31)
Increase/(decrease) in other financial and non-financial liabilites (262.58) 217.01
Cash generated from operations (476.62) 310.47
Income tax paid/(refund) (2.14) (0.26)
Net cash inflow from operating activities (474.47) 310.74
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of Investment - (1.00)
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment - (1.34)
Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 0.20 -
Decrease/(increase) in Fixed deposit with Bank (2.83) (47.65)
Decrease/(increase) in Inter Corporate Deposits 454 .51 (66.51)
interest Income 61.64 81.99
Net cash flow from investing activities 513.52 (34.51)
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of borrowings (50.00) (245.80)
Interest Expenses (15.91) (24.14)
Net cash flow from financing activities (65.91) (269.94)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents during the year (26.87) 6.29
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year 10 37.60 31.31
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents - -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year 10 10.73 37.60
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise of the following
Cash and cash equivalents (note 10) 10.73 37.60
Bank overdrafts - =
Balances per statement of cash flows 10.73 37.60

As per our report of even date attached
For Oswal Sunil & Company
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No.: 016520N

oA

CA Naresh Kumar Goel
Partner
M.No.: 085238

Place: New Delhi
Date: 26th April, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board

o
Jitendra Singh Chau
Director
DIN 01709943

Kamal Kumar Sharma
Director
DIN 00606090
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Polixel Security Systems Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounis are in Rupees unless otherwise stated)

1.

2.1.

Corporate information

Polixel Security Systems Private Limited is a private company incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956. The Company came into existence on 15% February, 2010. The Company is a
subsidiary company of HFCL Ltd.

Significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation

2.1.1.Compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended from time to time

2.1.2.Historical Cost Convention
The Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the

following:

e certain financial assets and liabilities and contingent consideration is measured at fair value;
* assets held for sale measured at fair value less cost to sell;
o defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value; and

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods
and services. The Financial Statements are presented in Indian, Rupees except where otherwise
stated.

2.1.3.Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement
principles of Ind AS requires the management of the Company to make estimates and judgements
that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities, disclosures relating to contingent liabilities
as at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expense for the
periods presented.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are
affected.

2.2. Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Company elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as

incurred.
At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at

their acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities
representing present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the

N



2.3.

2.4.

fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable. However, the following
assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination are measured at the basis indicated below:

Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognized and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Taxes and Ind AS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively.

When the Company acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-measured at
its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss or OCI, as
appropriate.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred
and the amount recognized for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in
excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognized in OCI and accumulated
in equity as capital reserve. After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit
may be impaired. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognized in profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognized for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:
a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading, or
c) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period other than for (a ) above,
or
d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current. A liability is current when:;
a) ltis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
b) Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading
¢) ltis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period other than for (a ) above, or
d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet

date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

G 1



2.5

2.6.

2.7,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

The Company categorizes assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels as
follows:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted)
This hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2
Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.
Level 2 inputs include the following:
a) quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets.
b) quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active.
¢) inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability.
d) Market — corroborated inputs.

Level 3

They are un-observable inputs for the asset or liability reflecting significant modifications to observable
related market data or Company’s assumptions about pricing by market participants. Fair values are
determined in whole or in part using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported
by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on
available market data.

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
The Company records the investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures at cost.

When the Company issues financial guarantees on behalf of subsidiaries, initially it measures the
financial guarantees at their fair values and subsequently measures at the higher of the amount of loss
allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognized less
cumulative amortization.

The Company records the initial fair value of financial guarantee as deemed investment with a
corresponding liability recorded as deferred revenue. Such deemed investment is added to the carrying
amount of investment in subsidiaries.

Deferred revenue is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the remaining period of
financial guarantee issued.

Non-current assets held for sale
Non-current assets and disposal group classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and intangible assets are not depreciated or amortized once
classified as held for sale.

AN )2
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2.8.

Freehold Land is carried at the actual cost. All other items .of PPE are stated at actual cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss. Actual cost is inclusive of freight, installation cost,
duties, taxes and other incidental expenses for bringing the asset to its working conditions for its
intended use (net of eligible input taxes) and any cost directly atfributable to bring the asset into the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the
Management. It includes professional fees and borrowing costs for qualifying assets.

Significant Parts of an item of PPE (including major inspections) having different useful lives & material
value or other factors are accounted for as separate components. All other repairs and maintenance
costs are recognized in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.Depreciation of these PPE
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

The estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed on an annual basis and if necessary,
changes in estimates are accounted for prospectively.

Depreciation on subsequent expenditure on PPE arising on account of capital improvement or other
factors is provided for prospectively over the remaining useful life.

The useful fife of property, plant and equipment are as follows:-

Asset Class Useful Life
Software 5 years
Computers 3 -6 years
Office Equipments 5 years
Vehicles 8 years

An item of PPE is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of PPE is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Intangible Assets

a. Intangible assets:

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Internally generated intangible asset arising from development activity is recognised
at cost on demonstration of its technical feasibility, the intention and ability of the Company to complete,
use or sell it, only if, it is probable that the asset would generate future economic benefit and to use or
sell of the asset, adequate resources to complete the development are available and the expenditure
attributable to the said assets during its development can be measured reliably.

An item of Intangible assets is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of Intangible assets are determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the profit or oss.

Research cost: Research costs are expensed as incurred, Development expenditures on an individual
project are recognised as an intangible asset when the Company can demonstrate all the following: -
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2.9.

¢ The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for
use or sale

¢ lts intention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset

¢ How the asset will generate future economic benefits

+ The availability of adequate resources to complete the development and to use or sell of the
asset

e The ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during
development

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost less
any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset begins
when development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortised on straight line basis
over the period of expected future benefit, i.e. the estimated useful life of the intangible asset.
Amortisation expense is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annuaily

Amortization periods and methods: Intangible assets are amortised on straight line basis over their
estimated useful lives ranging between 2-5 years.

b. Intanaible assets under development

All costs incurred in development, are initially capitalized as Intangible assets under development - ill
the time these are either transferred to Intangible Assets on completion or expensed off as Product
Development Cost (including allocated depreciation) as and when determined of no further use.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial

liability or equity instrument of another entity
2.9.1.Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time
frame are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that The Company commits to purchase or sell

the asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories
based on business model of the entity:

¢ Debt instruments at amortized cost

e Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

e Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss

(FVTPL)
e Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOC!)

Debt instruments at amortized cost
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and
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b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.
After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest rate (EIR) method.

Debt instrument at FVTOCI!
A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:
a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling the financial assets, and
b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income
(OCI). However, The Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign
exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized in OClI is reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt
instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL
Any debt instrument, that does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as
FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. .=

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized
cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or
eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The
Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the P&L.

Equity investments

All equity investments are measured at fair value. Equity instruments, the Company may make an
irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value.
The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made
on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on
the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. This amount is not recycled from OCI
to P & L, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss
within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the P&L.

De-recognition

A financial asset is de-recognized only when

> The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

> retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the Company has transferred an asset, it evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is de-
recognized.



Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is de-recognised if the Company has
not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset,
the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of Impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk

exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g., loans,
debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance
b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

c) Lease receivables under Ind AS 17

d) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result
from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115

e) Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL

f) Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:
e Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and
» Alllease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 17

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/
expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L).

2.9.2.Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Financial liabilities are initially measured at the amortised cost unless at initial
recognition, they are classified as fair value through profit and loss.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method. Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with
all changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end
of financial period which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities
unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognized initially at
their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is
measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements
of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or

expires.

2.10.Impairment of non-financial assets

2.11.

2.12.

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.

Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets.

When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions
are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is
used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss.

A previously recognized impairment loss (except for goodwill) is reversed only if there has been a
change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited to the carrying amount of the asset.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost includes cost of purchase and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is
determined on weighted average basis.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration that company expects to receive in exchange for those products
or services.

A ;



2.13.

2.14.

The Company recognizes revenue, when or as control over distinct goods or services is transferred to
the customer; i.e. when the customer is able to direct the use of the transferred goods or services and
obtains substantially all of the remaining benefits, provided a contract with enforceable rights and
obligations exists and amongst others collectability of consideration is probable taking into account our
customer’s creditworthiness. Revenue is the transaction price company expects to be entitled to.

If a contract contains more than one distinct good or service, the transaction price is allocated to each
performance obligation based on relative standalone selling prices. If stand-alone selling prices are
not observable then Company reasonably estimates those. Revenue is recognized for each
performance obligation either at a point in time or over time. Determining the timing of the transfer of
control at a point in time or over time requires judgment.

The Company recognises a contract asset (which may also refer as unbilled revenue) corresponding
to the revenue recognised when it has performed its obligation under contract, but consideration is not
due. The same is disclosed as “Unbilled Revenue” under Other Current Financial Assets

The Company presents revenues net of indirect taxes in its statement of Profit and loss.

Interest income is recognised as interest accrues using the effective interest method (“EIR”) that is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Insurance claims are accounted for as and when admitted by the concerned authority.

Dividend income is accounted when the right o receive it is established (provided that is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the company and the amount of income can be measured reliably.

Leases

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS
116. Identification of a lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses significant judgement
in assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate. The
discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being
evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

Foreign currency transactions
The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupees which represents the currency of the
economic environment in which it operates.

Transactions in currencies other than the Company’s functional currency are recognized at the rates
of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary items denominated in foreign
currency at the year end and not covered under forward exchange contracts are franslated at
the functional currency spot rate of exchange at the reporting date.

Any income or expense on account of exchange difference between the date of transaction and
on settlement or on translation is recognized in the Statement of profit and loss as income or
expense.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation difference on such assets
and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of fair value gain or loss.

|
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2.15.

2.16.

2.17.

2.18.

The company has adopted Appendix B to Ind AS 21- Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration which clarifies the date of transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate
to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income when an entity has received or
paid advance consideration in a foreign currency. The effect on account of adoption of this
amendment was insignificant.

Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefits:-

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled
wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service
are recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are
presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

Long-Term employee benefits

The Company provides for gratuity obligations through a defined benefit retirement plan (the ‘Gratuity
Plan’) covering all employees. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees
at retirement or termination of employment based on the respective employee salary and years of
employment with the Company. The Company provides for the Gratuity Plan based on actuarial
valuations in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard 19 (revised), “Employee Benefits”.

Compensated expenses which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of period
in which the employee renders the related services are recognized as a liability at the present value of
the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
asset are capitalized as part of cost of such asset. Other borrowing costs are recognized as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs consists of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

Contingent assets are disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts when an
inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts, unless
possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit is remote.

Cash Flow Statement

—F

%
._y/ :



2.19.

2.20.

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method. The cash flows from operating, investing and
financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share is computed by
dividing the profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving
basic earnings per share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have
been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Income taxes

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’'s taxable
income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and
liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses, if any.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the Standalone Financial
Statement. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized if they arise from the initial recognition
of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period
and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognized only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those temporary
differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities are not recognized for temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in subsidiaries, branches and associates and interest in joint arrangements
where the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are not recognized for temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in subsidiaries, associates and interest in joint arrangements where it is not
probable that the differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will not be
available against which the temporary difference can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset
and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.21. Recent new Accounting Pronouncements:



The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Amendment
Rules 2022 dated March 23, 2022 to amend the following IND AS which are effective from April 01,
2022.

a) Onerous Contracts — Costs of Fulfilling a Contract — Amendments to Ind AS 37

The amendments to Ind AS 37 specify which costs an entity needs to include when assessing whether
a contract is onerous or loss-making. The amendments apply a “directly related cost approach”. The
costs that relate directly to a contract to provide goods or services include both incremental costs for
example direct labour and materials and an allocation of other costs directly related to contract
activities for example an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and
equipment used in fulfilling that contract. General and administrative costs do not relate directly to a
contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract.

b) Reference to the Conceptual Framework —Amendments to Ind AS 103

The amendments replaced the reference to the ICAl's “Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements under Indian Accounting Standards” with the reference to the
“Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting Standard” without
significantly changing its requirements.

The amendments also added an exception to the recognition principle of Ind AS 103 Business
Combinations to avoid the issue of potential ‘day 2’ gains or losses arising for liabilities and contingent
liabilities that would be within the scope of Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets or Appendix C, Levies, of Ind AS 37, if incurred separately.

It has also been clarified that the existing guidance in Ind AS 103 for contingent assets would not be
affected by replacing the reference to the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements under Indian Accounting Standards.

c) Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use — Amendments to Ind AS 16

The amendments modified paragraph 17(e) of Ind AS 16 to clarify that excess of net sale proceeds of
items produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be recognised in the profit or loss but
deducted from the directly attributable costs considered as part of cost of an item of property, plant,
and equipment.

d) Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments — Fees in the 10 per cent’ test for derecognition of
financial liabilities

The amendment clarifies the fees that an entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a new

or modified financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the original financial liability.

These fees include only those paid or received between the borrower and the lender, including fees

paid or received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf.

e) Ind AS 116 — Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

The amendments remove the illustration of the reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the
lessor in order to resolve any potential confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives that
might arise because of how lease incentives were described in that illustration.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 01, 2022. The
Company has evaluated the amendments and the impact is not expected to be material.
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Polixel Security Systems Private Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

6 Non-Current Financial Assets - Others

. As at As at
|
Raftlciars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Fixed Deposits with Bank (Maturity more than 12 months) 5.08 2.73
Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposits 0.33 0.28
5.41 3.01

6a  Other Non current Assets
atieulars Marc:s:'!f t 2023 Marc:‘;: t 2022
Security Deposits 2.60 2.60
2.60 2.60
7  Deferred Tax Assets (net)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Related to Property, Plant and Equipment
Related to Employee Benefits

0.57
6.19

6.77

Refer Note 38

8 Inventories

Parti As at As at
articulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Inventories (As certified and valued by the management)
Stock-in-trade 93.08 102.46
93.08 102.46
9 Current Financial Assets - Trade Receivables
As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Trade Receivables
Unsecured, considered good

Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good 166.24 177.61
Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in Credit Ri - -
Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired Si00 3000
Less : Loss allowance (30.00) (30:00)
Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good - -
Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in Credit Risk - -
Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - -
166.24 177.61
9.1 Trade Receivables - Additional Information
As at March 31, 2023
Debtors Ageing
Total O/S | Not Due Due Less than 6 months | 6 months - 1 year | 1-2 year 2-3 years More than 3 years
166.24 75.88 90.36 41,13 - 9.14 - 40.09
As at March 31, 2022
Debtors Ageing
Total O/S | NotDue | Due Less than 6 months | 6 months - 1 year | 1-2 year 2-3years | More than 3 years
177.61 94.10 83.51 27.21 14.95 - 6.04 3531




10

11

12

13

14 (a)

14 (b)

15

17

Current Financial Assets - Cash & cash equivalents

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Cash & Cash Equivalents
Balance with banks

- In Current accounts 10.65 37.60
Cash on hand 0.08 -
10.73 37.60

Current Financial Assets - Other Bank Balances

. As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Fixed Deposits with original maturity over 3 months but less than 12 months* 153.33 152.90
153.33 152.90

* Above fixed deposit held as margin money with bank against bank guarantees
given by bank on behalf of Company

Current Financial Assets - Loans

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Unsecured, considered good
Bodies Corporate

499.27

953.78

499.27

953.78

Current Financial Assets -Other Assets

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Unsecured, considered good
Advances other than capital advances

- Advance to Employees 0.51 1.35
- Advance to Vendors 1.83 2.73
Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposits - -
2.33 4.08
Current Tax Assets (Net)
. As at As at
Fgticulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Advance Income Tax / TDS Recoverable 27.23 29.37
Less: Provisions for Current Tax - -
27.23 29.37
Contract Assets
. As at As at
P
SricHlEmE March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Unbilled Revenue 0.70 1.63
0.70 1.63
Other Current Assets
Particulars As at Asiat

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Unsecured, considered good

GST Recoverable 27.56 2411
Balances with Customs Authorities 8.34 8.34
Balances with Sales Tax Authorities - -
Deposit Towards Matters Under Income Tax Appeal 3.80 3.80
Prepaid Expenses 6.79 8.08
46.50 44.34
Non-Current Liabilities - Provisions
. As at As at
P |
articulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Provisions
Provision for Gratuity (Unfunded) 15.41 14.05
Provision for Leave Encashment (Unfunded) 10.48 9.56
25.89 23.61




Polixel Security Systems Private Limited - Financial Statements

(All amounts are in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

16  Total Authorised Share Capital (In Lakhs)
No of Shares Amount
As at March 31, 2021 4,10,000 41.00
Increase during the year - -
As at March 31, 2022 4,10,000 41.00
Increase during the period - -
As at March 31, 2023 4,10,000 41.00
(a) Equity Share Capital
Movement in Equity Share Capital
No of shares Equity Share Capital
par value
As at March 31, 2021 1,80,856 18.09
Add: Shares issued during the year - -
Add: Bonus shares issued during the year - -
Less: Share bought back during the year - -
As at March 31, 2022 1,80,856 18.09
Add: Shares issued during the period - -
Add: Bonus shares issued during the period - -
Less: Share bought back during the period - -
As at March 31, 2023 1,80,856 18.09
Reconciliation of Equity Shares Outstanding
. As at As at
Parijculars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Number of shares at the beginning 1.81 1.81
Add: Shares Converted during the period - -
Number of shares at the end of the period 1.81 1.81
Equity Shareholder Holding more than 5% Shares
As at As at
Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
No. of Shares No. of Shares
HFCL Limited* 180,856 180,856
(100%) {100%)
* One share is held by each of six nominees of Holding Company

As at 31.03.2023

Shares heid by Promceter at the end of the pericd

<. Mo Promoter Mame Mo of Shares

‘Tctal Shares

2i changs during the pericd

i HFCL Ltd 1,8C. 856

1003

03

As at 31.03.2022

Sha
S. Mo Prometer Mame ro. of Shares

2% of Total Shares

2t change during the pericd

3 HFCL Lid 1,B8C 856

100%

%%

{b) Other Equity

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

(i) Securities Premium*
(iii) Retained Earnings

Defined Benefit Plan

(iiiy Components of Other Comprehensive inome: Re-measurement of

584.00 584.00
102.04 243.58

49.80 47.84
735.83 875.41

Companies Act, 2013.

Movement in Other Equity

* Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares, The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provision of the

Components of

g . 0 . Other
Security Premium Retained Earnings Eomprehensive

inome
As at March 31, 2021 584.00 465.30 40.59
Increase during the year - (221.72) 7.25
As at March 31, 2022 584.00 243.58 47.84
Increase during the period - (141.54) 1.96
As at March 31, 2023 584.00 102.04 49.80




18

19

19.1

20

21

22

Current Financial Liabilities - Borrowings

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings
a,) Loans repayable on demand
(i) from Banks *

100.00

150.00

(il) from Corporate Bodies **
100.00 150.00
** The loan is unsecured and carries an interest rate of 12% per annum.
Current Financial Liabilities - Trade Payables
] As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Trade Payables
(i) MSME 61.12 87.83
(i) Others 46.00 67.57
(iii) Disputed dues (MSMEs) - -
(iv) Disputed dues (Others) - -
107.12 155.40
Trade Payables - Additional Information
As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022
Particulars MSME Others Total MSME Others Total
/S Amount 61.12 46.00 107.12 87.83 67.57 155.40
Not Due Amount - 12.27 12.27 - 9.71 9.71
Due Amount 61.12 33.74 94.86 87.83 57.86 145.69
Due Ageing:
Less than 1 Year 7.18 8.29 15.47 47.17 22.45 69.61
1-2Year 24.4% 8.64 33.04 36.17 11.79 47.95
2 -3 Year 12.56 8.96 21.52 4.50 2.78 7.28
More than 3 Years 16.97 7.85 24.82 - 20.85 - 20.85
Total Due Amount 61.12 33.74 94.86 87.83 57.86 145.69
Current Financial Liabilities - Other Liabilities
As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Other Financial Liabilities

Expenses Payable 19.91 33.74
Payable towards Investments - 1.00
19.91 34.74

Other Current Liabilities

Particulars

Other Current Liabilities
Statutory Liabilities
Advances from Customers

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
2.41 2.65
- 252.37
2.41 255.02

Current Liabilities - Provisions

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Provisions
Provision for Gratuity (Unfunded)
Provision for Leave Encashment (Unfunded)
Provision for Interest payable to MSME

0.63 0.53
0.54 0.46
3.80 10.40
4.96 11.39

7




Polixel Security Systems Private Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

23 Revenue from operations

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the vear ended
March 31, 2022

Sale of products
Sale of services
LD recovered by Customers

19.69 14.33
51.92 107.22

- (2.77)
71.61 118.78

Note : Revenue is net of GST

Revenues in excess of invoicing are classified as contract assets (which can also be refered to as unbilled revenue)
while invoicing in excess of revenues are classified as contract liabilities (which can also be refered to as unearned
revenues). The contract assets are transferred to receivables when the rights become unconditional. This usually occurs

when the Company issues an invoice to the customer.

24 Other income

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31. 2023

For the year ended
March 31. 2022

Other non-operating income
Interest Income
- Fixed Deposits
- Others
Profit on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment
Excess Provisions Written Back
Balances Written Back

8.00 7.08
53.63 73.90

0.20 -
11.46 1.71

1.63 19.50
74.92 102.19

25 Change in inventories of finished goods, work-in progress and stock-in trade (Including Spares)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Opening Balance

Stock In Trade 102,46 130.34

Less: Closing Stock
Stock In Trade 93.08 102.46
9.38 27.88

26 Other Direct Cost

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars
March 31. 2023 March 31, 2022
Cost of Site Survey, installation and commissioning services 3.34 40.81
3.34 40.81

27 Employee benefit expense

For the vear ended

For the year ended

Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Salaries, Allowances and Bonus 160.01 182.43
Contribution to Provident and other funds 6.46 7.39
Staff welfare expenses 0.64 0.69
167.11 190.51

28 Finance cost

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Finance Costs:

Bank Loan Interest - 5,54
Interest on ICD 15.91 18.60
Interest on TDS 0.04 -
Bank Charges & Commission 1.31 6.82
Other Finance Cost 1.55 5.11
18.81 36.07

29 Other expenses

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Rates and Taxes 0.38 0.16
Auditors’ Remuneration 6.50 6.50
Vat Expenses - 17.07
Legal and Professional Charges 12.95 22.65
Communication Expenses 3.15 3.40
Travelling and Conveyance Expenses 2777 53.47
Repairs and Maintenance 1.68 0.29
Freight 2.96 2.38
Insurance Expenses 9.20 8.47
Bad debts Written off 1.56 3.77
Loans and Advances Written off - -
Printing and stationery 0.1 0.17
Foreign Fluctuation Expense - -
Demurrage Expenses % - -
Warehousing Expenses :\\ ) 1.99 7.96
! 68.24 126.29
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Year ended March
31, 2023 {Lacs)

Year ended March
31, 2022 {Lacs)

Basic & Diluted Earnings per share before extra ordinary items

Profit /(Loss) after tax

Less: Preference dividend

Profit aftributable to equity sharehoiders
Weighted average number of equity shares

( used as denominator for calculating basic EPS)
Weighted average number of equity shares

( used as denominator for calculating diluted EPS)
Nominal value of equity share

Earnings per share basic

Eamings per share diluted

(141.54)

(141.54)
1.81

1.81
Rs.10

(78.26)
(78.26)

(221.72)

(221.72)
1.81

1.81
Rs.10

(122.59)
(122.59)

During the year, Company has recognised the following amounts in the financial statements as per Accounting Standard on "Employees Benefits" .

a) Defined Contribution Plan

Contribution to Defined Contribution Plan, recognised are charged off for the year as under :

Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund

b} Defined Benefit Plan

For the period ended
March 31, 2023
(Lacs)

For the period
ended March 31,
2022 (Lacs)

7.39

The Company provides for gratuity obligations through a defined benefit retirement plan (the ‘Gratuity plan’) covering all employees, The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment
to vested employees at retirement or termination of employment based on the respective employee salary and years of employment with the Company. The Company provides for the
Gratuity Plan based on actuarial valuation in accordance with Accounting Standard 15 (revised),”"Employee benefits” The present value of obligation under gratuity is determined
based on actuarial valuation at period end using Project Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employees benefit entitliement

and measures each unit separately to build the final obligations

Gratuity Leave Encashment
s = A For the year For the year
fctuarislassumptions For the year ended | ended March 31, | For the year ended | ended March 31,
March 31, 2023 2022 March 31, 2023 2022

Discount rate (per annum) 7.50% 7.00% 7.50% 7.00%
Salary growth rate 8.00% 8.00% 8.00% 8.00%
Rate of return on plan assets Nil Nil Nit Nil
Average future service (years) 20.5 20.4 20.5 204
Table showing changes in present value of obligations :
Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year 14.58 16.56 10.02 10.44
Interest cost 1.12 1.17 0.81 0.80
Current service cost 2.40 2.90 1.91 2.33
Benefits paid (if any) (1.16) (1.54) (0.67) (0.81)
Actuarial {gain)/ loss (0.91) (4.51) (1.06) (2.74)
Present value of obligation as at the end of the period 16.04 14.58 11.02 1002
Bifurcation of total acturial (gain)/ loss on liabilities
Actuarial (gain)/ losses from changes in financial assumptions (0.80) 0.13 (0.57) 0.09
Experience Adjustment {(gain) / loss for plan liabilities (0.11) (4.64) (0.48) {2.83)
Total amount recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (0.91) {4.51) (1,06) (2.74)
Key results to be recoanized in Balance Sheet
Present value of obligation as at the end of the period 16.04 14.58 11.02 10.02
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the period Nil Nil Nil Nil
Funded Status (16.04) (14.58) (11.02) (10.02)
Net asset / (liability) recognised in Balance Sheet 16.04 14.58 11.02 10.02
Expenses recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss :
Current service cost 2.40 2.90 1.91 2.33
Past service cost Nil Nil Nil Nil
Interest Cost 1.12 1.17 0.81 0.80
Expected return on plan assets Nit Nil Nill Nif
Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 3.52 4.07 272 | 3.13

Note: The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, takes into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors including supply and
demand in the employment market. The above information is certified by the Actuary.

Disclosure required under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 {the Act) are given as follows :

. As at March 31, | As at March 31,
Fartcylars 2023 (Lacs) 2022 (Lacs)
Principal amount due 61.12 87.83
Interest due on above 3.80 10,40
Interest paid during the period beyond the appointed day Nil Nit
Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment without adding the interest specified under the Act, Nit Nil
Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the period 3.80 10.40

Nil Nil

Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to small enterprises for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Sec.23 of the Act

Note: The above information and that given in Note No. 19 ' Trade Payables' regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has been determined on the basis of information

available with the Company and has been relied upon by the auditors.

Payment to Auditors (Excluding GST)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023
(Lacs)

For the year
ended March 31,
2022 {Lacs)

Audit Fees (including limited reviews)

6.50

650
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Commitments and Contingencies

Contingent Liabilities not provided for in respect of :

As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2023 (Lacs) 2022 (Lacs)
Unexpired Letters of Credit* - -
Guarantees given by banks on behalf of the Company* 135.28 135.28
Claims against the Company towards West Bengal Sales Tax Act in dispute not acknowledged as debt - -
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt 19.01 19.01
Income Tax disputed demand of AY 2016-17 pending before iTAT; amount deposited Rs.3.80 Lakhs

*Margin Money Rs. CY: 153.33 Lakhs (PY: 155.63 Lakhs)

Note:

(a) The Company has no pending litigations and proceedings as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 other than the Income Tax matter pending with {TAT as mentioned above in
Note 34 (a) (iv).

{b) The Company periodically reviews all its long term contracts to assess for any material foreseeable losses. Based on such review wherever applicable, the Company has made
adequate provisions for these long term contracts in the books of account as required under any applicable law/accounting standard.

(c) The Company did not have any outstanding derivative contracts as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022
(d) The Parliament of India has approved the Code on social Security, 2020 (the Code) which may impact the contributions by the Company towards provident fund, gratuity and ESI.
The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the effective date has not yet been notified. The Compay will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect

and will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective.

Capital Commitments

As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2023 {Lacs) 2022 {Lacs)

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of advances) - -

The Company has reviewed the outstanding receivables and has written off a sum of Rs.1.56/- (Previous year Rs.17.31/-} during the year as bad, which in the opinion of the
Management is adequate.

Lease payments under cancellable operating leases have been recognized as an expense in the Statement of profit & loss. Maximum obligation on lease amount payable as per
rentals stated in respective agreements are as follows:-

As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2023 (Lacs) 2022 (Lacs)

Not later than one year - 6.62
Later than one year but not later than five years -
More than five years -~

Related Party Disclosures
Related Party Disclosure, as identified by the Management and relied upon by the Auditors

HFCL Limited, Holding Company

Fellow Subsidiaries
HTL Limited HFCL Inc. (w.e f. 08th October, 2021}

HFCL Technologies Private Limited {w.e.f. 26th June, 2021) HFCL B.V, {w.e.f. 07th October, 2021)
Raddef Private Limited

Dragonwave HFCL India Private limited

Moneta Finance Private Limited

HFCL Advance Systems Private Limited

Kev Management Personnel:

Shri Kamal Kumar Sharma Director
Shri Ashwani Gupta Director (Up to 06th October 2022)
Shri M A Johar Director
Shri Jitendra Singh Chaudhary Director (W.e.f. 06th October 2022)
i) Transactions with Related Parties

. Holding Company
Nature of Transaction TTMar23 S ar a2
Sale of Goods/Services 33.18 56.51
Expenses Recovered - -
Purchase of Goods/Services - -
Purchase of Investment - 1.00
Amount Received/ (Paid} (247.19) 753.00
Balance-Receivable/ (Pavabie} 27.00 (253.37)
ii) Receivable/(Pavable)
Name of the Party Amount as at Amount as at

31.03.2023 31.03.2022

HFCL Limited 27.00 (253.37)

Note: Transactions with Related Parties are shown inclusive of GST (wherever applicable) and TDS (wherever applicbale). Likewise, Outstanding Balances at the year end are
inclusive of GST and net of TDS

‘\S :
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Deferred Tax

The break up of net Deferred Tax Asset is as under:

3 Deteryeditax Charge/{Credit} |Deferred Tax Asset
Particulars Assetasat | 4 o the period | as at 31.03.2023
31.03.2022 R
Carry Forwvard Losses = = 3233
WDV of Property Plant & Eauibment 057 0.57 24
Provision for Leave Encashment 252 2.52 2.77
Provision for Gratuity 3.67 367 4.04
Deferred Tax Asset in Total (A} 6.77 6.77 39.33
| Deferred Tax Liability in Totaf (B} - - -
|Net Deferred Tax Asset / {Liahilitv) (A+B) 8.77 .77 39.39
The management is of the view that currently the requirement of virtual certainty and convincing evidence as i in Indian Standard (Ind AS) 12 are not met

and therefore, Deferred Tax Assets have not been carried in the financial staternents. Accordingly, the Company has not recognized the Deferred Tax assets as at 31st March 2023
(Also refer Note 7)
Seament Reportina

a) Primary Segment Information (by Business Segments}

The Company is engaged in the business of Trading, Commissioning, AMC Services of Security Systems and aiso Business Support Services. Informat(on reported to and
evaluated regutarly by the chief operating decision maker (CODM), i e., Board of Directors of the Company, for the purp of resource and per

focuses on the business as a whole and accordingly, (n the context of operating segment as defined under Indian Accourmng Standard 108 “Operating Segments” there is a single
reportable segment.

b) Secondary Segment Reporting (by Geographical Segments})

The Company caters mainly to the needs of the domestic market, hence there are no reportable geographical segments.

In the opinion of the Board, all assets other than property, ptant and equipment and non-current investmenis, have a realisable value in the ordinary course of business which is
not significantly differ from the amount at which it is stated.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, and financial guarantee contracts. The main purpose
of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations. The Coinpany's principal financial assets include loans,
trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations

The Company’s business activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, namely liquidity risk, market sisks and credit risk. The Company's senior management has the overali
responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework.

41.1 MANAGEMENT OF LIQUIDITY RISK
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will face in meeting its obligations associated with its financial liabilities. The Company's approach to managing liquidity Is to ensure that
it will have sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses. In doing this, management considers both normal and stressed conditions.

The following table shows the maturity analvsis of the Company's finsre:al liabilities based on contractually aareed undiscounted cash flows as at the Balance Sheet date.
Note No Carrying amount Less than 12 More than 12 Total
months months

As at March 31, 2023
Trade pavables 19 107 12 107.12 - 107 12
Deposits ( Retention Money) - - . -
Obligations under finance lease - -
Borrowinas 18 100.00 100.00 - 100 00
Other financial fiabilities 20 19.91 19 91 - 19.91

As at March 31, 2022
Trade payables 19 155 40 155.40 - 155 40
Deposits { Retention Money) - - - -
Obligations under finance lease - -
Borrowings 18 150.00 150 00 - 150 00

Other financial liabilittes 20 34.74 3474 - 34.74
Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk:
interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, FYTOCI
investments.

The sensitivity anafyses in the following sections refate to the position as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022

POTENTIAL IMPACT OF RISK | MANAGEMENT POLICY [ SENSITIVITY TO RISK

1_Price Risk

The company B exposed 1o the price risk due to ds mvesimant = equity|In order to manage its price risk arising|The company is having investment in equity shares
mstruments. The price risk anses dus to uncertaintles about the liure(from investments, the Company diversifies|amounting to Rs. 1 Lakh as on the balance sheet date.
wialuntions of Ihe investments. its portfolio {if required) from time to time

Equily Price Risk s related to the change in market reference price of
the investments in equity securiies. The company s holding equity
shares amounting to Rs 1 Lakh &8 on the balance shest date

2 _INTEREST RATE RISK

Imineest rafe risk is the risk that the fayr valus or fulure cash flows of afIn order to manage its interest rate risk The]As an estimation of the approximate impact of the interest|
finzncial [nstrument will Muctuale becouse of changes in marke! inferest|Company  diversifies  its  portfolio  injrate risk, with respect to financial instruments, the Company/|
rates The Company's sxpasure to the risk of changes in mariet inferest| accordance with the risk managementfhas calculated the impact of a 0.25% change in interest|
rates relates primarily to the Company's kng- debt with [ initiati rates. A 0.25% decrease in interest rates would have led to
Noating Interest rates. approximately an additional Rs 02 Lakh loss for period
Company has Fived deposits with Banks amounting to Ms 158 Lakhs ended March 31st, 2023 (Rs,0.02 Lakh loss for year ended|
Bs al March 31st, 2023 (Rs, 156 Lakhs as at March 3181 | 2022) March 31st 2022) in Interest income. A 0.25% increase in
Interest |noome eamed on fived deposit for period endeg March 31a0, interest rates would have led to an equal but opposite effect.
2023 s Rs A Lakhs Cr (R 10 Lakhs as at March 316t , 2022)

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss The Company is exposed to credit
risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions and other financial
Trade Receivables

Customner credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit
quality of a customer is assessed based on an extensive credit rating scorecard and individual credit limits are defined in with this O customer
receivables are regularly monitored At 31st March 2023, the Company had top 10 customers (31 March 2022: top 10 customers) that owed the Company more than INR 166
Lakhs (31 March 2022 176 Lakhs) and accounted for approximately 99 99% (31 March 2022: 99.46%) of all the receivables outstanding.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous
groups and for i ively The i to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disciosed in Note
9.1. The Company does not hold collateral as security The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are located in
several jurisdictions and industries and operate in Jargely independent markets.

Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial ituti is by the in with the Company's poficy. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by
the management on an annual basis, and may be updated throughout the year. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial lass
through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments.

The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 is the carrying amounts as iflustrated in Note 9 1
except for financial guarantees

Capital management
Capital includes issued equity capital and share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders The primary objective of the Company's capital

isto i the value.
Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Lacs Lacs

Borrowings {Except preference shares) {Note 18) 100.00 150.00
Redeemable preference shares - -
Trade Payables (Note 19) 107.12 156.40
Other Payables (Note 17) 2589 2361
Less : Cash and Cash eguivalents (Note 10} 10.73 3760
Deposits - -

Total Debt 243.74 366.61
Convertible preference shares - -
Equity 753.92 893.50
Total Capital 763.92 893.50
Capital and Total debt 997.66 1,260.11
Gearing ratio 24.43% 29.09%
The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the req of the financial The Cornpany

monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which s net debt divided by total capital plus net debt.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the period ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022



42 _Financial Instruments by category

Particulars Matzz3 Mar=22
FVTPL | FVTOCI | Amortised Cost FVTPL | FVTOC! | _Amortised Cost
1) Financial Assets
)nvestments
a) Bank deposits - - - - - -
Iy Trade receivables - - 166.24 - - 177.614
11} Cash and Cash equivalents - - 10.73 - - 37.60
IV) Other Bank balances 158.74 - 155,91
V) Security deposit for utilities and premises - - - - - -
V1) Other receivables - - 501.60 - - 960.47
Total financial assets - - 837.32 - - 1,331.59

2) Financial liabilities
[} Borrowings - S - -
A) From Banks S o - .
B) From Others - - 100.00 - - 150.00

C) Preference Shares - - - - -
Ii} Obligations under Finance Lease - - - - -

lil) Deposits - - - - - B
{V) Trade payables - - 107.12 r - 155.40
V) Other liabilities - - 19.91 - = 34.74
Total Financial liabilities - - 227.04 - - 340.15

[} Fair Value measurement-
Fair Value Hierarchy and valuation technique used to determine fair value :

The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that are either observable or
unobservable and are categorized into Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 inputs.

A} Period ended 31st March 2023

SEis  an 1DIlies Which are measure
Amortised Cost for which fair value are disclosed Note No. Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
at 31-03-2023
Financial Assets
Investments 3 - 1.00
Debentures and bonds - - -
Eank Deposits 6,11 - - 158.74
Security deposit for ulilities and premises 13 - - -
I'otal Financial Assets - 1.00 158.74

B) Year Ending 31st March 2022

Assets and Liabilities wiich are measured  ay
Amortised Cost for which fair value are disclosed Note No. Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
at 31-03-2022

Financiai Assets

Investments 3 - 1.00 -
Debentures and bonds - - -
Bank Deposits 6,11 - - 155.91
Security deposit for utilities and premises 13 - = -
(Total Financial Assels - 1.00 155.01

Significant estimates
The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation technigues. The Company uses its judgement to select a variety of methods
and make assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period. For details of the key assumptions used and the impact of the changes

to these assumptions,

43 Tax Reconciliation

Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Net Profit/ (Loss) as per Statment of Profit and Loss (before tax) (134.78) (221.43)
Current Tax rate @ 25.168% (PY: 25.168%) - -
Adjustment:
Provision for employee Benefit/others 2.06 8.02
Depreciation (0.37) 0.08
Interest Provision for MSME 0.39 1.29
Expenses /deductions 0.01 0.01
Profit on Sale of Assets e -
Provision for Doubtful Debts - -
DTA/ (DTLY - 0.29
Tax Provision as per Books - -

* The management is of the view that currently convincing evidence as enunciated in Indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS) 12 are not met and therefore, Deferred
Tax Assets on carried forward losses & Unabsorbed Depreciation have not been carried in the financial statements as at 31st March, 2023 (refer Note 38).




44 Financial ratios

Ratio/ Measures Methodoloay March 31. 2023 March 31. 2022 Variances %
()| Current Ratio ! Current assets over current liabilities 4.26 2.48 72%
(ii)| Debt Equity Ratio Total debt over share holder equity 0.13 0.17 -24%
(1ii | Debt Service Coverage Ratio Earning available for Debt Service over -1.23 -1.22 1%
Debt
(iv)|Return on Equity PAT over average shareholder equity -0.17 -22.00% -22.73%
(") |inventory Turnover Ratio® Sales over average inventory 0.73 1.02 -28%
(vi)| Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio® Net Sales over average account 0.42 0.28 50%
receivables
(vii)| Trade Pavables Turnover Ratio Purchases over average trade pavables 0.10 0.08 25%
(viii}|Net Capital Turnover Ratio* Net Sales over working capital 0.09 13.00% -30.77%
(ix)|Net Profit Ratio Net profit after tax over sales -1.98 -1.87 5.88%
(x)|Return on Capital Employed EBIT over total assets less intangible -0.18 -24.00% -25.00%
assets less current liabilities
(xt}{Return on Investment Interest Income net gain on sale of - - -
investment and net fair value gain over
average investment
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(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

{v)
{vi)
(vii)
{viii)
(ix)
(x)
{xi}
{xii}
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PAT - Profit after tax
Working Capital - Current assets less current iiablities

EBIT - Earning before Interest and taxes

Explanations on variances in excess of 25%

' Chanae in Current Ratio is due to settlement of advance from customers

2 Inventory tumn over ratic has decreased due to decline in sales.

3 Change in Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio is due to decrease in sales.

* Change in net capital turnover ratio is due to decline in sales & current liability

Other Statutory Information

The Company does not have any benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property.

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the
Intermediary shafl:

(a) directly or indirectly iend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (ultimate beneficiaries) or

{b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or en behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

The Company has not received any-fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (funding party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise)
that the Company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (ultimate beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

The Company is not declared wilful defaulter by and bank or financials institution or lender during the year.

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period

The Company has not rasied funds from issue of securities or borrowings from banks and financiat institutions

The Company has not obtained any borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets.

The title deeds of all the immovable properties, (other than immovable properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the
Company) disclosed i the financial statements included in property, plant and equipment and capital work-in progress are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet
date.

The Company does not have any transactions with companies which are struck off.

Previous year figures have been regrouped, rearranged and/or reclassified wherever necessary to conform to current year's classification.
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